
AGENDA  
ELGIN GROUP POLICE SERVICES BOARD 

 
Tuesday, September 6, 2022 

3:00 p.m. 
 

Elgin County Detachment Boardroom 
42696 John Wise Line 
St. Thomas, Ontario 

 
 

Call to Order Chair Sally Martyn shall preside. 
 
Adoption of Minutes from May 11, 2022 Meeting (ATTACHED) 
 
Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest and the General Nature Thereof 
 
Reports (ATTACHED) 
 
 

1) Ontario Association of Police Services Boards Spring Conference – Vice Chair 
2) OPP Contract Extension – Secretary Administrator 
3) Detachment Commander’s Quarterly Report 

 
Correspondence  
 
Other Items 
 
New Business 
 
Closed Session Items 
 
Adjournment 
 
Next Meeting: To be determined   
 
 



1 
 

Draft Minutes 
ELGIN GROUP POLICE SERVICES BOARD 

May 11, 2022 
 

The Elgin Group Police Services Board met in the Community Room at the Elgin 
County Detachment Office, 42696 John Wise Line with the following in attendance: 
 
Sally Martyn, Chair 
Trudy Kanellis, Vice-Chair 
Ida McCallum, Board Member 
David Jenkins, Provincial Member 
Inspector Mark Loucas, Detachment Commander 
Staff Sergeant Mike Butler, Detachment Manager 
Samantha Grainer, Regional Operations Analyst 
Carolyn Krahn, Secretary-Administrator  
 
Regrets:   
 
Dan Froese, Board Member  
Julie Gonyou, Chief Administrative Officer – County of Elgin 
 
Call to Order: 
 
The Chair called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. 
 
Adoption of Minutes: 
 
Moved by: David Jenkins 
Seconded by: Ida McCallum 
 
RESOLVED THAT the minutes of the meeting held on February 16, 2022 be adopted. 
 

- Motion Carried. 
 
Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest and the General Nature Thereof: 
 
None. 
 
Reports: 
 
 
1) Detachment Commander’s Quarterly Report 
 

The Detachment Commander provided an update on public complaints; the crime 
abatement strategy; patrol hours; violent, property, and drug crimes; and collisions 
for the period of January 2022 to March 2022.  
 
Samantha Grainer, Regional Operations Analyst for Elgin and Middlesex Counties, 
was in attendance and provided an overview of her role. 



2 
 

 
The Detachment Manager provided an overview of the new Collision Reporting 
Centre, which offers a more efficient and safe way to report collisions that do not 
involve serious injuries or property damage beyond involved vehicles. 
 
Moved by: Trudy Kanellis 
Seconded by: Ida McCallum 
 
RESOLVED THAT the report be received and filed. 

 
- Motion Carried. 

 
Correspondence: 
 
None. 
 
Other Items: 
 
None. 
 
New Business:  
 
None. 
 
Closed Session Items: 
 
None. 
 
Next Meeting:  
 
A Doodle Poll will be sent out to Board Members to set the date of the next meeting. 
 
Adjournment: 
 
Moved by: Ida McCallum 
Seconded by: David Jenkins 
 
RESOLVED THAT we do now adjourn at 10:26 a.m.  
 

- Motion Carried. 
 
 
 
_______________________________  ________________________________ 

Carolyn Krahn,      Sally Martyn, 
   Secretary/Administrator.          Chair. 



 

  

 

1 

REPORT TO ELGIN GROUP POLICE 
SERVICES BOARD 
FROM:   Trudy Kanellis, Vice-Chair 

DATE:  May 27, 2022 

SUBJECT: 2022 Ontario Association of Police Services  
                    Boards Spring Conference  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

 
THAT the report from the Vice-Chair, dated May 27, 2022, be received and filed.   

INTRODUCTION: 

 
The purpose of this report is to provide the Elgin Group Police Services Board with a 
summary of the 2022 Ontario Association of Police Services Boards (OAPSB) Spring 
Conference. 

DISCUSSION:  

May 26, 2022 
 
Modernizing Police Governance in Ontario 

Ryan Teschner, Executive Director and Chief of Staff at Toronto Police Services Board 
Danielle Dowdy, Senior Advisor, Strategic Policy & Stakeholder Relations 
Dubi Kanengisser, Senior Advisor, Strategic Police & Stakeholder Relations 
 
This session looked at how different interpretations of the Board’s role has impacted the 
Toronto Police Services Board. 

Key Points 

• Building trust through modern police governance: “Trust seems to be the secret 
sauce.” 

• Public trust is at a historic low; boards must deliberately seek trust. 
• Healthy Tension or Symbiosis? 
• There have been decades of misunderstanding of what police boards are. 



 

  

 

2 

• By building trust with our police service boards and our chiefs, boards will be 
able to do their job. 

• Boards must enhance transparency and public understanding of the work of 
governance. Good governance needs to be properly resourced. 

• Anti-Racism Advisor Panel, and Mental Health & Addictions Advisory Panels have 
been implemented. 

• They are revising existing policies, including policies on body worn cameras and 
artificial intelligence. 

Leading with Priorities, Equity, Diversity, Inclusion and Anti-Racism 

Stephen Reid, Co-Chair Serving with Pride 
Jacqueline Edwards, President, Association of Black Law Enforcers 
Tammy Fryer, Chair, A WIP-ON (WE in Policing) 
Kimberley O’Toole, President, Ontario Women in Law Enforcement 
 
This was an in-depth conversation about how legislation and regulatory frameworks 
require Police Service Boards to take a more active role ensuring that robust diversity, 
equity, and inclusion (EDI) and anti-racism strategies for all of Ontario’s police services 
are implemented and measured. 

Key points 

• Panel put out 600 surveys and only received 10 responses. This shows there is 
more apathy than anticipated. 

• Why did they only receive 10 responses to the survey? Was it miscommunication, 
or did people not know how to answer the questions? 

• Discussed when to consult and engage, who should be engaged and how 
engagement can be sustained. 

• Communities both internally and externally are saying enough is enough of being 
used. 

• The morale internally and externally is at a low, partly due to COVID. 
• It is important that boards walk the walk and talk the talk. 

• Members need to feel safe, physically and psychologically. They have to believe 
things are going to be done. For the past 25 years, we have been having the 
same discussion, but nothing is changing.   

• Your EDI strategy needs to reflect your organization. 

• Are we getting the real reasons why chiefs are leaving and retiring early? 

 

 



 

  

 

3 

#HTinWC and #SAinWC: Raising Awareness in Rural Communities 

Provincial Constable Beth Hickey, Youth Resiliency Officer, Wellington County OPP 
Sarah Bowers-Peter, Program Coordinator, Crime Stoppers Guelph Wellington 
 
Wellington County received a one-year Community Safety and Policing Grant to raise 
awareness and reduce the stigma surrounding human trafficking and sexual assault as 
well as providing training to officers on trauma-informed approaches. 

Key points 

• They produced a video.  
• The system re-traumatizes victims. 
• Human trafficking is hard to measure as most cases go unreported. 

• Rural locations are ideal for recruitment. 
• The internet is a key resource for grooming. 
• On average it takes a predator 35 seconds to contact a victim once the profile is 

created. 

Policing 2023 and Beyond 

Patrick Weaver, Chair, Ontario Association of Police Service Boards 
Mark Baxter, President, Police Association of Ontario 
Chief Nishan Duraiappah, Vice President, Ontario Association of Chiefs of Police 
 
This session looked at critical issues facing policing today and into the future. 

Key Points 

• Special Constables are being considered. These constables do not have to be 
scrutinized by special agencies.  

• The proper use of these Constables will free up sworn officers. 
• Cyber related crime, human trafficking, and community safety and well-being 

planning are heavily police-driven, but the goal is to regress out of it. 
• Police are seeing more success with the mobile response teams. 

• The OPP is short 800-1000 officers right now. 
• Governments don’t enact change. Governments react to change. 
• Police mandate was to serve and protect. Now we are social workers and health 

counselors. 
• Police boards have been asked to sharpen their pencils. While cybercrimes and 

human trafficking are increasing, our resources are decreasing. 
• Provincial government has set aside $45 million over 3 years for mental health. 



 

  

 

4 

• Technology makes policing more effective (e.g. electronic note taking, phones for 
referrals while in the home). 

• With body worn cameras, the perception of the public is that there will be 
increased accountability and transparency of the officers. 

OPP Stakeholder Survey – Detachment Performance Reporting 

Matthew Lewandowski, Manager of Research, Planning & Analysis, OPP 
Anne Moore, A/Manager of Strategy Management, OPP 
 
Introduction and background on the upcoming OPP survey in response to the Office of 
the Auditor General of Ontario Value Money Audit 

Key Points 

• The purpose of the survey is to gather stakeholder input on what metrics/ 
information may be most meaningful to support the development of goals and 
objectives for decision making. 

• The survey goal is to standardize metrics/information reported. 
• Recommended that the survey help the municipalities receive adequate and 

effective level of policing service, to increase transparency and provide 
municipalities with the information required to make informed decisions.  

• Reporting objectives and compliance with yet to come into force legislation:  

o enhanced transparency and accountability 
o enhanced reporting based on needs identified 
o enhanced governance stakeholder satisfaction with OPP 
o enhanced evidence-based decision making 

• Five standardized themes derived from the PSA to help PSB’s set goals and 
objectives 
1. Crime Prevention and Community Engagement 
2. Law Enforcement 
3. Assistance to Victims of crime 
4. Police Resources 
5. Trust and Confidence in Police 

May 27, 2022 

Keynote Address 

Fueling Success Through Inclusivity and Diversity 

Dr. Ivan Joseph 

Practical and proven strategies to build an inclusive culture 



 

  

 

5 

Key Points 

• Teams with more diversity and inclusivity have higher performance rates. 
• High performance of excellence happens because it forces you to work, express 

your views and expertise. Diverse teams will outperform teams of similar 
interests. 

• We have bias that diverse teams make conflict.  
• Limit referral hiring. You are 79 times more likely to hire a female if you have 2 

more in the pool. 
• Focus beyond task adhesions and focus on social cohesion. 

• Don’t treat everyone the same. Treat everyone equitably and celebrate their 
differences. 

• Make people feel like they matter and belong. 
• You cannot make diversity training mandatory; you need to figure out a way to 

make it interesting. 

Cannabis Act 

Rachel Huggings, Deputy Director, Executive Lead, Cannabis Legalization 

Provincial Police talked about their recent projects looking at illegal cannabis products 
and the harmful contaminants.  They also discussed the need for broader collaboration 
between regulators, law enforcement and public health when communicating with 
Canadians about the potential risks of illegal cannabis. 

Key points 

• Most illegal productions are gone except for Toronto. 
• Ontario has about 400 legal entities producing cannabis. There are over 800 in 

the whole Country, and Ontario has half of them. 
• Medical Cannabis – when they created the Cannabis Act it was too much work in 

such a short time, so they kept the act the way it was. 
• OPP and Quebec are the only 2 that have a provincial team to enforce cannabis. 

There are 24 members on the team. Half are civilian and half are police officers. 
• Police cannot do everything related to cannabis enforcement. They handle the 

large organizations. 
• They do not even touch the low hanging fruit; they want the ones linked to 

organized crimes. 
• The US is up 518% of seizures. 
• A lot of doctors are prescribing high doses of cannabis. The average person 

would consume 3.2 grams a day. Doctors are prescribing 45 – 100 grams a day. 
• If a doctor prescribes 100 grams, they will get a call from Health Canada. 



 

  

 

6 

• Trying to get national guidelines on setting prescription limits. 

Election Outcomes and the Effects on Policing 

Lynne Hamilton, Local Consultants 

Lynne gave an update on the state of the election race and what the outcome could 
mean for police boards going forward. 

Key points 

• Her prediction was a Conservative majority government. This should not impact 
the police boards. 

• Potential new SOLGEN Minister – Mulroney, Romano, Mark Saunders? 
• Continued partnership and support  
• New police service act to go forward quickly (2023 implementation) 
• Resources for training 
• Continued great relations with OAPSB 

• Possible name change of the OAPSB 

Closing remarks 

Patrick Weaver, Chair, Ontario Association Police Services Boards 

Due to COVID, exited 2021 in a very good fiscal position. In a good position going into 
2022 and primed to get into the strategic plan.   

CONCLUSION: 

 
I truly appreciate the board allowing me to attend these conferences.  I am learning 
many new things, with much more to learn. 

All of which is Respectfully Submitted  

 

Trudy Kanellis 

Vice-Chair 



 

  

 

1 

REPORT TO ELGIN GROUP POLICE 
SERVICES BOARD 
FROM:   Carolyn Krahn, Secretary-Administrator 

DATE:  August 30, 2022 

SUBJECT: OPP Contract Extension  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

 
THAT the report from the Secretary-Administrator, dated August 30, 2022, be received 
and filed.   

INTRODUCTION: 

 
The purpose of this report is to provide the Elgin Group Police Services Board with an 
update regarding a recent request from the Ontario Provincial Police (OPP) for an 
extension to the current contract.   

DISCUSSION:  

 
Elgin’s contract with Ontario Provincial Police (OPP) expires on December 31, 2022.  
OPP asked member municipalities to consider extending our current contract to 
December 31st, 2023. To support member municipalities in their consideration of this 
matter, the following was sent to each municipality on July 21, 2022:  

• Letter from Chair Martyn with details about the proposed contract extension 
(Municipality of Dutton Dunwich attached as an example); 

• Draft By-Law (prepared by the Secretary-Administrator of the Elgin Group PSB 
and reviewed by the County Solicitor); and 

• A draft of the Amending Agreement sent to our group by OPP. 
 

The agreement will conclude at the end of 2023 or when the Community Safety and 
Policing Act comes into force. 



 

  

 

2 

 

CONCLUSION: 

 
An update regarding the Elgin Group PSB contract with OPP and the Community Safety 
and Policing Act will be provided at a future meeting.  

 

All of which is Respectfully Submitted  

 

Carolyn Krahn 

Secretary-Administrator 

Manager of Economic Development and Strategic 
Initiatives, County of Elgin   



 
 

 
 
 
ELGIN GROUP POLICE SERVICES BOARD 

Chair Sally Martyn 
Tel. 519-631-1460 
450 Sunset Drive 

St. Thomas, ON N5R 5V1 
 

Municipality of Bayham | Municipality of Central Elgin | Municipality of Dutton Dunwich  
Municipality of West Elgin | Township of Malahide | Township of Southwold 

 
July 12, 2022 

 
Dear Mayor Purcell and Municipality of Dutton Dunwich Council, 

 
I write to you in my capacity as Chair of the Elgin Group Police Services Board (Elgin Group) to advise 
you that Elgin Group’s contract with Ontario Provincial Police (OPP) expires on December 31st, 2022. 

 
The new Community Safety and Policing Act (CSPA) is set to come into effect soon, and all contracts 
will become null and void at that time. Instead of entering into a new contract with the Ministry at 
year’s end, the Elgin Group Member Municipalities have the option of extending the current contract 
for a period of one (1) year. 

 
To extend the contract, Member Municipalities will be required to pass a By-law to amend the 
Agreement and extend the contract until the 31st of December 2023. I have enclosed a draft copy of 
the Elgin Group Amending Agreement, as provided by OPP. Additionally, I have enclosed a draft By-
law prepared by Elgin Group’s Secretary Administrator and reviewed by the County’s Solicitor. Upon 
review of the draft Agreement, each Council is required to pass the By-law to amend the Agreement.  
 
Please send a copy of the By-law, signed by both the head of Council or presiding officer of the 
meeting at which the By-law is passed and the Clerk, under the Corporation’s seal to Police Services 
Board Secretary Administrator – Carolyn Krahn (ckrahn@elgin.ca). Once each Member Municipality 
has passed the By-law, the Ministry will assemble the final copy of the Amending Agreement and will 
send it to the Member Municipalities for their signatures.  
 
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me directly. 
 
Yours very truly, 

Sally Martyn 

Chair, Elgin Group Police Services Board 
 

Enclosures:  
1. Draft by-law 
2. Draft Elgin Group Amending Agreement  

 
Cc: Elgin Group Police Services Board 

mailto:ckrahn@elgin.ca


SCHEDULE “A” 
By-Law No. _______ 

 
 

“A BY-LAW TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR AND THE CLERK  
TO EXECUTE AN AMENDING AGREEMENT WITH HER MAJESTY THE QUEEN  

IN RIGHT OF ONTARIO AS REPRESENTED BY THE SOLICITOR GENERAL  
FOR THE PROVISION OF POLICE SERVICES FOR THE  

ELGIN GROUP MUNICIPALITIES” 
 

 
WHEREAS the Municipal Act, 2001 S.O, c.25, as amended, authorizes municipalities to 
enter into agreements; and  
 
AND WHEREAS under Section 4(1) of the Police Services Act, R.S.O. 1990, c.P.15, 
municipalities are required to provide adequate and effective police services in accordance 
with its needs; 
 
WHEREAS under Section 10 of the Police Services Act, R.S.O. 1990, c.P.15, the Solicitor 
General may enter into an agreement with the council of a municipality or jointly with the 
councils of two or more municipalities for the provision of police services for the municipality 
or municipalities by the Ontario Provincial Police; 
 
AND WHEREAS under Section 29, the Parties may amend the Agreement by written 
agreement; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Corporation of the Municipality of West Elgin, the Corporation of the 
Municipality of Bayham, the Corporation of the Municipality of the Township of Southwold, 
the Corporation of the Municipality of Central Elgin, the Corporation of the Municipality of 
Dutton Dunwich and the Corporation of the Municipality of the Township of Malahide 
(herein after collectively called the “Elgin Group”) seek to enter into a single amending 
agreement for the provision of Police Services by the Ontario Provincial Police; 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Corporation of the Municipality of _____________ 
____________________ enacts as follows: 
 
1. The Mayor and the Clerk are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Corporation of the 

Municipality/Township of ________________________________ to enter into and 
execute under its corporate seal an agreement for the provision of Police Services with 
the Solicitor General of Ontario. 
 

2. The Police Services agreement with the Solicitor General of Ontario shall also be 
authorized by the five other Municipalities, being the other members of the Elgin Group. 

 
3. The Police Services amending agreement will commence on the 30th day of 

December, 2022 and will conclude on the 31st day of December, 2023. 
 
4. A copy of said amending agreement shall remain attached to and form part of this by-

law. 
 
5. This By-law shall come into force and effect upon the final passing thereof. 
 
 
 
 
READ A FIRST, SECOND, THIRD TIME AND FINALLY PASSED THIS ______ DAY OF 
_________________________ 2022. 

 
 
 
 

    
                    
           Chief Administrative Officer/Clerk.                                       Mayor.  



DRAFT

This second AMENDING AGREEMENT is from the 1st day of January, 2015 to the 30th day 
of December, 2023 

BETWEEN: 

HER MAJESTY THE QUEEN IN RIGHT OF ONTARIO AS REPRESENTED BY THE 
SOLICITOR GENERAL 
(“Ontario”) 

-and-

THE CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF WEST ELGIN  
THE CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF BAYHAM  
THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF SOUTHWOLD  
THE CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF CENTRAL ELGIN 
THE CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF DUTTON/DUNWICH 
THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MALAHIDE 

(“the Elgin Group”) 

BACKGROUND 

A. The Parties entered into the Agreement for the provision of Police Services under
Section 10 of the Police Services Act (the “Agreement”) which commenced on
the 1st day of January 2015.

B. The Agreement includes all the Schedules and Appendices to the Agreement.

C. Pursuant to Section 29, the Parties may amend the Agreement by written
agreement.

D. The Parties wish to further amend the Agreement as set out in this second 
Amending Agreement, by extending the duration of the contract to conclude on 
the 31st of December, 2023, as supported by:

• Bylaw # ###, dated #####, 2022 of the Council of the Municipality of West Elgin
(attached as Schedule “A-1”).

• Bylaw # ####, dated #####, 2022 of the Council of the Municipality of Bayham
(attached as Schedule “A-1”).

• Bylaw # ####, dated #####, 2022 of the Council of the Township of Southwold
(attached as Schedule “A-1”).

• Bylaw # ####, dated #####, 2022 of the Council of the Municipality of Central Elgin
(attached as Schedule “A-1”).

• Bylaw # ####, dated #####, 2022 of the Council of the Municipality of Dutton
Dunwich (attached as Schedule “A-1”).

• Bylaw # ####, dated #####, 2022 of the Council of the Township of Malahide
(attached as Schedule “A-1”).



DRAFT

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Section 26 of the Agreement shall be replaced with the following:

26. Notwithstanding the date upon which this Agreement is signed, the term of
this Agreement shall commence on the 1st day of January 2015, and shall
conclude on the earlier of (i) the 31st day of December, 2023 or (ii) the date
that the Community Safety and Policing Act, 2019 comes into force.

Relevant terms and conditions of the Agreement, that are not specifically amended but 
that relate to the amendments set out in this Amending Agreement shall be deemed to be 
amended so as to give effect to the changes herein . 

Except for the amendments set out herein, the terms and conditions of the Agreement 
remain in full force and effect and time shall remain of the essence. 

Notwithstanding the date upon which this Amending Agreement is signed, this Amending 
Agreement is effective as of the 30th day of December, 2022.  

FOR ONTARIO 
Deputy Solicitor General, Community Safety

FOR THE Corporation of
the Municipality of West Elgin Mayor 

Chief Administrative Officer 

Date signed by Municipality: 

FOR THE Corporation of  
the Municipality of Bayham Mayor 

Chief Administrative Officer 

Date signed by Municipality: 



DRAFT

FOR THE Corporation of  
the Township of Southwold Mayor 

Chief Administrative Officer 

Date signed by Municipality: 

FOR THE Corporation of  
the Municipality of Central Elgin Mayor 

Chief Administrative Officer 

Date signed by Municipality: 

FOR THE Corporation of
the Municipality of
Dutton/Dunwich

Mayor 

Chief Administrative Officer 

Date signed by Municipality: 

FOR THE Corporation of  
the Township of Malahide Mayor 

Chief Administrative Officer 

Date signed by Municipality: 



DRAFT
Schedule “A-1” 

BY-LAW’S OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL 
Elgin Group 

THE CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF WEST ELGIN

THE CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF BAYHAM

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF SOUTHWOLD

THE CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF CENTRAL ELGIN

THE CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF DUTTON/DUNWICH

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MALAHIDE



Police Services Board Report for The Elgin Group Police Services Board
2022/Apr to 2022/Jun

Public Complaints
Policy 1
Service 0
Conduct 2

Date information collected from Professional Standards Bureau Commander Reports:    2022-08-11
Data Source
Ontario
Provincial
Police,
Professional
Standards
Bureau
Commander
Reports

- Includes all public policy, service and conduct complaints submitted to the Office of the Independent Police Review Director 
(OIPRD)

Secondary Employment

Intelligence Led Policing - Crime Abatement Strategy
Number of Offenders in Program 14
Number of Offenders Charged 4
Number of Charges Laid 13
Number of Checks Performed 16

Date information was collected from Records Management System:   2022-08-11

Daily Activity Reporting Patrol Hours
Total Hours 2022/Apr to 2022/Jun
Number of Cruiser Patrol Hours 1,481.00
Number of Motorcycle Patrol Hours 9.00
Number of Marine Patrol Hours 74.00
Number of ATV Patrol Hours 0.00
Number of Snowmobile Patrol Hours 0.00
Number of Bicycle Patrol Hours 0.00
Number of Foot Patrol Hours 65.50
Number of School Patrol Hours 0.00

Data source (Daily Activity Reporting System) date:   2022/08/10

Staffing Updates
Transfers: P/C Ben WIEBE transferred to Elgin County OPP from Oxford County OPP.
Promotions: Sgt. Jeff McNorgan promoted to S/Sgt. Norfolk County Detachment.

Awards: Several Elgin County OPP members were recognized with 20yr and 30yr Service Awards at the West 
Region Awards Ceremony held in June 2022.

Recognition: Members recognized locally with Regional Commander's Challenge Coins for "Serving with Pride, 
Professionalism, and Honour."

Other: N/A.

Detachment Initiatives

Detachment: 6P - ELGIN COUNTY
Location code(s): 6P00 - ELGIN COUNTY, 6P01 - ELGIN COUNTY (Elgin Group (MI)), 6P10 - DUTTON, 6P30 - CHATHAM-
KENT

Report Generated by: Report Generated on: 
Loucas, Mark Aug 11, 2022 1:24:16 PM

PP–CSC–Operational Planning-4300



Police Services Board Report for The Elgin Group Police Services Board
2022/Apr to 2022/Jun

Crime and Traffic 
Campaigns/Initiatives:

Easter Long Weekend Seatbelt Campaign Canada Road Safety Week Safe Boating Week Canada Day 
Week

Public Education 
Campaigns: Operation Freeze - Police/Youth Campaign

Detachment Emergency Planning Activities
Emergency Planning 
Activities   N/A

Continuity Of 
Operations Plan 
Status

  COOP Plan completed for 2022.

Table-Top Exercises   COOP Table-top exercise completed.
Other:   N/A

Detachment: 6P - ELGIN COUNTY
Location code(s): 6P00 - ELGIN COUNTY, 6P01 - ELGIN COUNTY (Elgin Group (MI)), 6P10 - DUTTON, 6P30 - CHATHAM-
KENT

Report Generated by: Report Generated on: 
Loucas, Mark Aug 11, 2022 1:24:16 PM

PP–CSC–Operational Planning-4300



Police Services Board Report for The Elgin Group Police Services Board
Collision Reporting System

April to June - 2022

Motor Vehicle Collisions by Type

Incidents April to June Year to Date - June
2021 2022 % 

Change
2021 2022 % 

Change
Fatal 1 3 200.0% 1 3 200.0%
Personal Injury 31 38 22.6% 55 60 9.1%
Property Damage 141 225 59.6% 337 459 36.2%
Total 173 266 53.8% 393 522 32.8%

0
40
80

120
160
200
240

Fatal Personal
Injury

Property
Damage

2021 2022

In
ci

de
nt

s

Fatalities in Detachment Area
Incidents April to June Year to Date - June

2021 2022 % Change 2021 2022 % Change
Motor Vehicle Collision Fatal Incidents 1 3 200.0% 1 3 200.0%

Alcohol Related 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Off-Road Vehicle Fatal Incidents 0 0 -- 0 0 --

Alcohol Related 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Motorized Snow Vehicle Fatal Incidents 0 0 -- 0 0 --

Alcohol Related 0 0 -- 0 0 --

Persons Killed April to June Year to Date - June
2021 2022 % Change 2021 2022 % Change

Motor Vehicle Collision 1 3 200.0% 1 3 200.0%
Off-Road Vehicle 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Motorized Snow Vehicle 0 0 -- 0 0 --

Detachment: 6P - ELGIN COUNTY
Location code(s): 6P00-ELGIN COUNTY, 6P01-ELGIN COUNTY (Elgin Group (MI)), 6P10-DUTTON, 6P20-TILLSONBURG, 
6P30-CHATHAM-KENT, 6P70-[MORAVIAN OF THE THAMES] DELAWARE FN
Data source date:  Report Generated by: Report Generated on: 
2022/08/07 Loucas, Mark Aug 11, 2022 2:26:10 PM

PP–CSC–Operational Planning-4300



Police Services Board Report for The Elgin Group Police Services Board
Collision Reporting System

April to June - 2022

Primary Causal Factors in Fatal Motor Vehicle Collisions
Incidents April to June Year to Date - June

2021 2022 % 
Change

2021 2022 % 
Change

Speeding as a 
contributing factor

0 0 0 0 0 0

Where alcohol is 
involved

0 0 0 0 0 0

Wildlife as a 
contributing factor

0 0 0 0 0 0

Inattentive driver as a 
contributing factor

0 1 0 0 1 0

Persons Killed April to June Year to Date - June
2021 2022 % 

Change
2021 2022 % 

Change
Seatbelt as a 
contributing factor

1 0 -100.00% 1 0 -100.00%

0

1

Sp
ee

din
g

Alc
oh

ol

Wildl
ife

Ina
tte

nti
ve 

Dr...

2021 2022

In
ci

de
nt

s

Data Utilized
-
SQL
online
application
reporting
system
–
OPP
CRS
2.3.09

- Collision Reporting System Business Intelligence Cube

Detachment: 6P - ELGIN COUNTY
Location code(s): 6P00-ELGIN COUNTY, 6P01-ELGIN COUNTY (Elgin Group (MI)), 6P10-DUTTON, 6P20-TILLSONBURG, 
6P30-CHATHAM-KENT, 6P70-[MORAVIAN OF THE THAMES] DELAWARE FN
Data source date:  Report Generated by: Report Generated on: 
2022/08/07 Loucas, Mark Aug 11, 2022 2:26:10 PM

PP–CSC–Operational Planning-4300



Police Services Board Report for The Elgin Group Police Services Board
Records Management System

April to June - 2022

Violent Crime 
Actual April to June Year to Date - June

2021 2022 % 
Change

2021 2022 % 
Change

Murder 1 0 -100.0% 1 1 0.0%
Other Offences Causing 
Death

0 0 -- 0 0 --

Attempted Murder 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Sexual Assault 9 7 -22.2% 17 14 -17.6%
Assault 46 35 -23.9% 75 65 -13.3%
Abduction 1 0 -100.0% 1 0 -100.0%
Robbery 0 1 -- 1 2 100.0%
Other Crimes Against a 
Person

15 16 6.7% 28 32 14.3%

Total 72 59 -18.1% 123 114 -7.3%

0

10

20

30

40

50

Murd
er

Se
xu

al 
As

sau
...

As
sau

lt

Ab
du

ctio
n

Ro
bb

ery

Othe
r C

rim
es.

..

2021 2022

Ac
tu

al

Property Crime 
Actual April to June Year to Date - June

2021 2022 % 
Change

2021 2022 % 
Change

Arson 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Break & Enter 24 33 37.5% 48 50 4.2%
Theft Over 26 21 -19.2% 48 51 6.2%
Theft Under 54 45 -16.7% 85 83 -2.4%
Have Stolen Goods 11 6 -45.5% 15 9 -40.0%
Fraud 30 37 23.3% 68 90 32.4%
Mischief 45 30 -33.3% 67 49 -26.9%
Total 190 172 -9.5% 331 332 0.3%

0
10
20
30
40
50
60

Bre
ak 

& En
te.

..

Th
eft

 Over

Th
eft

 Un
de

r

Have
 St

ole
n .

..
Fra

ud

Misc
hie

f

2021 2022

Ac
tu

al

Drug Crime
Actual April to June Year to Date - June

2021 2022 % 
Change

2021 2022 % 
Change

Possession 1 2 100.0% 4 2 -50.0%
Trafficking 3 2 -33.3% 5 6 20.0%
Importation and 
Production

0 0 -- 0 0 --

Total 4 4 0.0% 9 8 -11.1%

0

1

2
2

3

Possession Trafficking
2021 2022

Ac
tu

al

Detachment: 6P - ELGIN COUNTY
Location code(s): 6P00 - ELGIN COUNTY, 6P01 - ELGIN COUNTY (Elgin Group (MI)) (Inactive), 6P10 - DUTTON, 6P20 - 
TILLSONBURG (Inactive), 6P30 - CHATHAM-KENT, 6P70 - [MORAVIAN OF THE THAMES] DELAWARE FN
Data source date:  Report Generated by: Report Generated on: 
2022/08/06 Loucas, Mark Aug 11, 2022 2:32:48 PM

PP–CSC–Operational Planning-4300



Police Services Board Report for The Elgin Group Police Services Board
Records Management System

April to June - 2022

Clearance Rate
Clearance Rate April to June Year to Date - June

2021 2022 Difference 2021 2022 Difference

Violent Crime 65.3% 78.0% 12.7% 63.4% 74.6% 11.2%

Property Crime 18.4% 9.9% -8.5% 20.2% 9.0% -11.2%

Drug Crime 75.0% 50.0% -25.0% 77.8% 62.5% -15.3%

Total (Violent, 
Property & Drug)

37.2% 30.6% -6.5% 37.2% 29.7% -7.5%

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%

Violent
Crim...

Property
Cri...

Drug
Crime

Total
(Viole...

2021 2022

Criminal Record and Vulnerable Sector Screening Checks
Actual April to June Year to Date - June

2021 2022 % 
Change

2021 2022 % 
Change

Criminal Record Checks 103 131 27.2% 180 220 22.2%
Vulnerable Sector 
Screening Checks

264 869 229.2% 506 1,227 142.5%
0 400 800 1,200

Criminal
Record ...
Vulnerable
Secto...

2021 2022

Data contained within this report is dynamic in nature and numbers will change over time as the Ontario Provincial Police 
continue
to
investigate
and
solve
crime.

Data Utilized
-
Major
Crimes

- Niche RMS All Offence Level Business Intelligence Cube

Detachment: 6P - ELGIN COUNTY
Location code(s): 6P00 - ELGIN COUNTY, 6P01 - ELGIN COUNTY (Elgin Group (MI)) (Inactive), 6P10 - DUTTON, 6P20 - 
TILLSONBURG (Inactive), 6P30 - CHATHAM-KENT, 6P70 - [MORAVIAN OF THE THAMES] DELAWARE FN
Data source date:  Report Generated by: Report Generated on: 
2022/08/06 Loucas, Mark Aug 11, 2022 2:32:48 PM

PP–CSC–Operational Planning-4300


	041 - OPP Contract Extension 2023 - Dutton Dunwich.pdf.pdf
	ELGIN Amending Agreement DRAFT.pdf
	This second AMENDING AGREEMENT is from the 1st day of January, 2015 to the 30th day of December, 2023
	Schedule “A-1”
	BY-LAW’S OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL
	Elgin Group


	040 - OPP Contract Extension.pdf
	RECOMMENDATION:
	INTRODUCTION:
	DISCUSSION:
	CONCLUSION:

	030 - PSB Spring Conference.pdf
	RECOMMENDATION:
	INTRODUCTION:
	DISCUSSION:
	CONCLUSION:




